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FLOKEI\;CE

KENTU(KY®

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE CITY COORDINATOR

September 19, 2015

To the Mayor, City Council and Citizens of the City of Florence, Kentucky:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within seven months of
the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity
with generally accepled accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of
the City of Fiorence for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Florence. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, maragement of the City of Florence has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City of Fiorence's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because
the cost of internal conirols should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Florence’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonabie
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City of Florence'’s financial statements have been audited by Rankin, Rankin and
Company, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit
was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Florence for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are free of material misstatement. The independent
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overail financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Florence's financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of
this report.

GAAP requires that management provide & narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
1
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Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and shouid be
read in conjunction with it. The City of Florence's MD&A can be found immediately following

the report of the independent auditors,
Profile of the Government

The City of Florence, founded in 1830, is located in the northern most part of the state,
situated in Boone County and is part of the Northern Kentucky Region, which ranks as one of
the top growth areas In Kentucky. The City of Florence currently occupies a land area of 10.4
square miles and serves an estimated population of 31,888. The City of Florence is
empowered to levy numerous sources of revenue including its major sources payroll tax,
business license tax, insurance premiums tax and a property tax on both real and personal
properties. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation,
which oceurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing body.

The City of Florence operates under the Mayor/Council form of govemment. Legislative
authority is vested in the City Council, consisting of six City Council members, The Mayor is
the executive authority. The City Council is responsible, among other things for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget and appointing members to various boards. The Mayor
approves the hiring of all full time employees. The City Coordinator reports directly to the
Mayor and is responsible for carrying out policies and ordinances of the City Council and is
responsible for the development of short and fong range planning, capital improvement
programs and running the day-to-day operations of the city. The City Council is elected on a
non-paftisan basis. The Mayor serves based upon a 4 year term and the City Council serve
based upon a 2 year term. The next election for the Office of Mayor will be held in 2018 with
the Mayor to take office January 1, 2019. The next election for City Council will be held in
2018 with the Council to take office on January 1, 2017.

The City of Florence provides a full range of services, full time professional police force and
full time professional fire protection; advanced life support medic services: street
maintenance and improvement; water and sewer setvices; storm water collection; a full
range of recreational facilities and activities; cultural events; planning and zoning and code
enforcement.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Florence's financial planning and
control. All departments of the City of Florence are required fo submit requests for
appropriation to the City Coordinator. The City Coordinator uses these requests as the
starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Coordinator then presents this
proposed budget to the Mayor for review. The Mayor and City Coordinator then present the
budget to the Gity Council for review. Then, City Council budget work sessions are held on
the proposed budget. The final budget is adopted by July 1. The appropriated budget is
prepared by fund and department (8.g., police). Expenditures may not legally exceed
budgeted appropriations &t the departmental level. Any revisions to the budget that would
alter fotal revenues and department expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City

Council,
Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of

Florence operates,



Local economy, Fiorence's location is a major factor in allowing it to become an economic
force in the Greater Cincinnati/Narthern Kentucky region. Also, the consistent and persisient
effort put forth by Florence’s elected and appointed officials and other community leaders
over the past iwenty vears has positioned the City very well.

The focus on financial management and economic development has established the City as
a center of commerce in the Greater Cincinnati and northern Kentucky region. Private
investment and job growth continue in the city. Continuing efforts are paying dividends, and
the City is experiencing successas from large to small, all of which are very important to our
comimunity.

The Northern Kentucky University’'s Center for Economic Analysis and Development
recntly released a study about commuter-adjusted populations in the Greater Cincinnati
region. The commuter-adjusted population is the expansion or contraction of the worker
population throughout a typical workday.

Among all communities in northern Kentucky, Florence had the strongest net-inflow of
workers, with our employment to residence ratio of 1.51 to 1. Boone County has the
strongest employment to resident ratio among northern Kentucky counties at 1.21 to 1,
which is behind oniy Hamiiton County in the tri-state region. Kenton County's ratio is 0.84
to 1, and Campbell County's ratio is 0.68 to1.

Areas that have an employment to resident ratio of greater than 1.00 are where there are
more jobs than the number of working residents; therefore, the city imports part of its labor
and classifies us as a “job hub”.

When we analyze the commercial real estate market in Florence, we shape up rather well in
the region. Leasing and purchasing activity in the retail, industrial, and office sectors have
been very active. On the retail side, our vacancy rate in the city is beiow 4%, which is one of
the best performers in the ragion, where the regional retail vacancy is 8.4%. The industrial
vacancy rate is under 2%, while the overall vacancy rate in the region is 6.7%. And, the
nrofessional office vacancy rate in Florence is 12%, with the region's rate at 20.6%. Overall,
we fair better than most communities in the region. These are positive signs of the strength
of our economy in Florence, but it does suggest, particuiarly on the industrial front, that future
growth could be constrained without available industrial real estate coming onto the market.

All of these factars are very strong and positive indicators of Florence's overali economy.
It is truly the perfect time to do business in the City of Florence. The City is looking
forward to one of the largest regional retail developments with the openings of Costeo,
Menard's, Dave and Buster's and Planet Fithess.

There were several state transporiation proiects that were completed during the year that are
all of great benefit fo the residents, visitors and businesses of the City. In addition, the City is
moving forward with additional enhancements to Mall Road, The City is proposing and
working with the State to construct a frontage road that will link up with Connector Drive. A
naw entrance ramp from Mail Road to southbound 75 s in the Kentucky Transportation
Cabinet's six-year road plan proposed by the Governor and adopted by the legisiature,

The City has also completed numsrous sidewalk, street improvemaents, storm water, sanitary
sewer and water improvemenis throughout areas of the City. In addition, the City has
finished the construction of a new Fire Substation on Woodspoint Drive.
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Long-term financial planning. The city has implemented a three-year budget plan. The three-
year budget plan serves as a basis for a rolling three-year strategic plan for the City. This
plan will carry out the City's vision as adopted by the City Council. Long-term future
sustainability is the primary focus of the budget plan,

The City is continuing to explore the possibility of developing new parks and adding
amenities to existing parks. After the completion of the projects mentioned in the paragraphs
above, there are no large construction projects planned.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City of Florence has adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies addressing
various areas of operations such as revenue collection, banking services, investment
policies, debt management, budget management and fund balance reserves.

The unassigned fund balance in the general fund is 145.10% of total general fund revenues
and falls within policy guidelines. The City strives to maintain at least 25 percent of total
general fund revenues so as to reduce amounts that may need to be borrowed in the future.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Florence for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2C14. This was the tenth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and
applicable program requirements,

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. However, we believe that
our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the departments of Finance and
Administration. Each member of both departments has my sincere appreciation for the
contribution made in the preparation of this report. Credit must also be given to the Mayor
and Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City of Florence’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

foehand 7 Snnoman

Richard J. Lunnemann
City Coordinator
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Certified Public Accourntants 1717 Dide Highway, Suite 600
Ft. Wright, Kentucky 41011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Diane E. Whalen, Mayor
Members of City Council
City of Florence, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Florence, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the reiated notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in

the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Siatemenis

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
inciudes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internat control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materiai misstatement,

whether due to fraud or efror.
Auditor's Responsibiiity

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards appiicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedurss to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internai control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterments
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Florence, Kentucky, as of June
30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

Linited States of America.
Uther Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 13 and 57
and schedule of city contributions and schedule of proportionate share of net position liability on
pages 59 and 60 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, sconomic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express as opinion or provide any assurance.

Qther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
coliectively comprise the City of Florence, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund financial statements, and
statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analyisis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a reguiired
part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underiying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing proceoL
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express-an .——
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 10, 2015, on our consideration of the City of Florence, Kentucky's internal controt over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is fo describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Florence, Kentucky's internal control over financial

repotting and compliance.
RANKIN, RANKIN & COMPANY
Lo, P+

Ft. Wright, Kentucky
September 10, 2015
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CITY OF

FLORE I\;C E

KENTUCKY,

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

As management of the City of Florence, we offer readers of the city’'s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Florence, Kentucky for the year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage readers to
consider the information in conjunction with the letter of transmittal, which can be found

on pages 1-4 in this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year by
$160,208,633 (net position), Of this amount, $69,244 458 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $66,698,370. This was an increase of $9,285,238 in
comparison to the prior year. The increase was mainly the result of the City's general

cperating fund.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
349,065,099, or 180.96% of total general fund expenditures, transfers and other
expenditures,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended fo serve as an introduction to the City's
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements encompass three
componenis: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements;
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements. These two statements report
the City's net assets and changes in them.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
are designed o provide readers with a bread overview of the City's finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector husinass,

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference being reported as net
position. Over time, the increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the City's financial position is improving or deteriorating. Other
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition
of the City's infrastructure will aiso assist in assessing the overall financial health of the

City.

The statement of activities presents how the government’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reportied as soon as the

13
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underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash
flows. As a result, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that wilt only result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncoliected
revenue and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that
are principally supported by taxes, license fees and intergovernmental activities which
are considered governmental activities, from those functions that are intended to cover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges which are
considered business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the
City's basic services. These include but are not limited to police, fire, street
maintenance, parks and recreation, and general administration. The business-type
activities include the City's water and sewer service operations and the golf course
operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Florence itself
(known as the primary government), but also the City of Florence Municipai Properties
Corporation for which the City is financially accountable.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 24 and 25 of this
report. .

Fund financial statements. A fund is & grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities and
objectives. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the City
Council establishes many other funds with specific sources of revenue to help it controf
and manage money for particular purposes (i.e., Infrastructure Fund and Aguatic
Center Fund) or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for grant and restricted
funds (i.e., Municipal Aid Fund and Asset Forfeiture Fund). All funds of the City can be
divided into three categories. governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds. The City's two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different
accounting approaches,

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentiaily the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the governmentwide financial
statements. However, uniike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides, Governmental fund information helps to
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
hear future to finance the City's programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's nearterm financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues.
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

14



The City of Florence maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental balance sheet and in the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general fund which is
considered to be a major fund. Data from the other three governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this repor,

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget,

The basic governmental financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds
to account for its water and sewer service operations and the golf course operations.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to
account for its health and dental costs.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The preprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information on the water and sewer service and the golf course
operations, both of which are considered major funds of the City of Florence. Since
there is only one internal service fund, separate information is provided.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this
report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

The notes fo the financial statements can be found on pages 33-56 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information. The
budgetary comparison schedules and combining statements and schedules can be
found on pages 57-58 and 63-68 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Anaiysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the City of Florence, assets and deferred
outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$160,208,633 at the close of the most recent year.

The largest portion of the City's net position (56.78 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment), less any related debt to

15



finance those assets that is slill outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the funds needed fo repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities.

For the years ended June 30, 20156 and 2014 net position changed as follows
{amounts in thousands):

Governmental Activities Business-tvpe Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and other
assels $ 83178 § 72826 § 9345 § 9,553 § 62,523 § 82378
Capital assets, net 82,307 81,327 30,246 30,133 112,553 111,480
Total assets 165,485 154,153 39,591 39,686 205,078 183,839
Total deferred outflows
of resources 3,355 488 528 359 3,881 847
QOther ligbilities 3,380 2,982 1,403 1,629 4783 4,481
Long-term liabilities 38,067 19,140 4,099 2,757 42,166 21,897
Total liabilities 41 447 22,102 5502 4 286 46 949 265,388
Total deferred inflows
of resources 1,631 - 169 - 1,800 -
Net position:
Net Investment in
capital assets 63,468 61,572 27,486 26,833 90,064 88,405
Restricied - - - 248 - 248
Unrestricted 62,295 70,867 6,249 8,678 69 244 79,645

Total net position $ 125763 § 132530 % 34445 § 35758 § 160208 $ 168,298

For fiscal year 2015, an additionai portion of the City's net position (1 percent)
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The remaining balance of unrastricted net assets (362,244 .458) may be used to meest
the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City was able to report positive balances in ali
three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its
saeparate governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for

the prior fiscal year,

Net position of the City increased 9.99% or $14.5 million during the current fiscal year.
The increase was mainly attributed to the growth in the revenue line items outpacing
the growth in operating and contractual expenses.

The city was required to adopt GASB Statement 68, "Accounting and Financial
reporting for Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27" during fiscal year
2015. As a result of that adoption, a prior period adjustment was made to record the
beginning net pension liability amounts,
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Governmeantat Activities

Business-type Activities

2015 2014 2015 2014
Rewnues:
Program revenues:
Charges for senices 3 4,733,356 % 4,403,931 8 9,703,540 §  ©692,474
Operating grants and
contributions 1,036,973 688,046 - -
Capital grants 2,557,928 1,113,782 - -
General revenues:
Taxes 30,699,521 29,246,154 - -
Other 509,026 848,385 24,284 23,111
Total revenues 38,538,804 36,300,308 9,727,804 9,715,585
Expenses:
Administration 3,688,237 3,417,382 - -
Police 8,462,001 7,147 127 - -
Fire 5,939,483 6,041,934 - -
Public senices 5,656,885 9,387,338 - -
Interest on tong-term debt 768,415 709,212 205,451 199,148
Loss on disposal of assets - - - -
Water and sewer senices - - 7,733,558 7,801,387
Golf Course - - 1,243,317 1,248,740
Total expenses 25,525,031 28,702,991 9,182,326 9,049 278
Increase in net position before
transfers and other expenses 14,011,773 9,587,317 545,478 666,308
Transfers (10Q0,000) (100,000) 100,000 100,000
Increase in net position 13,811,773 9,497,317 845 478 766,309
Net position - July 1 132,539,139 123,041 822 35,758,916 34,992,607
Frior period adjustment {20,688,038) - (1.958,635) -

Net position - June 30 $

125,762,874 5

132,538,138 §

34,445,758 § 35,758,816

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by
$13.¢ million, thereby accounting for 95.56% of the total growih in net position. Key
elements of this growth are as follows:

o Taxes increased $1.4 million over fiscal year 2014. The payroll tax position
increased by $711,298 during 2015 as a result of improved economic
conditions and increased economic development. in addition, the City also
experienced a rebound in 2015 with occupational license fees increasing by
$151,564. Another revenue increasing as a result of the improved economic
conditions was the insurance premium tax, It increased by $192,560. The City's
property tax revenues increased due to collections. The property tax revenue
increased by $214,643 despite relatively no increases in the assessed values
and not raising of the tax rate for the sixth straight year in a row. Capital grant



revenue increased by $1,444, 146 as a result of the grants for various road and
sidewalk projects. Qperating grant revenue also in increased by $348 927 as a
result of the SAFER grant awarded to hire six additional firefighters..

There was a decrease of $1,177,960 for governmental activities as a result of
no major construction projects during the year and the initial entries o record
the GASB 68 measurement period entries.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Type Activities

Charges for

Services
$4 733,356 Operating
12 % Grants and

Contribufions
531,036,973
3%

Other 3508,028
1%

/"’/—ﬂt-
-
& Capital Grants
and
| T Contributions
\ $2,657 6828
6%

Tax537

$30.698,521
78%

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by
$645,478, accounting for 4.44 percent of the total growth in the government's net
position. Key elements of this increase are as follows,

In reviewing the net (expense)revenue, the water and sewer sales and service
function showed net income for the year of $722,713. The income was
attributable to operations due to a four percent incregase in rates implemented
the last several years. The last rate increase was on April 1, 2013. In addition,
expenses increased by $65,867 due to higher wage and benefit costs along
with an increase in water purchasing costs.

The goif course fund showed a net loss for the year of $77,235 as a result of
operations and interest expense. The loss was the result of a decrease in
revenues of $70,830 due to the wet spring. Operating expenses decreased
slightly by $5,423 due to lower personnel cost. In addition, an operating transfer
was made during the year as a result of the ongoing debt service commitments,
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Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities

Sewer Charges
22.70%

Golf Course
11.76%

_Other Charges
3.39%

. Transfers
1.02%

Water Charges
61.11%

Financial Analysis of the Government’'s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is {o provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s government funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $66,688,370, an increase of $8,285,238 in comparison with
the prior year. Approximately 73.58 percent of this total amount constitutes unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The
remainder of the fund balance is classified as nonspendable, committed to or assigned
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because of constraints that have
been placed on the use of these resources for specific purposes either internally or
externally.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $49,065,099 while {otal fund
balance was $56,612,694. As a measure of the general fund’s liguidity, it may be
useful to compare unassigned fund balance and tofal fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 180.96 percent of total general
fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 208,80 percent of
that same amount,
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The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $6,778,412 during the current
fiscal year. Key factors in this growth are as follows:

° Payroll taxes, property taxes and insurance premium tax made a recovery and
produced results stronger than originally anticipated

« The City enacted payroll and insurance premium tax increases on July 1, 2007
that were part of a long-range plan. This enactment has continued to enable the
City to buiid reserves.

¢ No major construction projects were done in the current fiscal year.

= Operating expenditures are continuing to increase as a result of higher wages,
benefit costs and additional personnel in the fire and police departments.

The municipal aid road/LGEA fund has a total fund balance of $1,222,806, all of which
is restricted for street improvements and snow removal expenditures, The net increase
in fund balance during the year was the result of a decrease in the dollar amount of
street projects budgeted for the current vear and an increase in revenues. The
infrastructure fund had a total fund balance of $7,151,905. The fund balance increased
during fiscal year 2015 due to a transfer in of $1.5 million for the Florence Heights
project that had not been started yet and an excess of revenues over expenditures,
The asset forfeiture fund had a decrease in fund balance of $68,007 as a result of
increased expenditures for the reconstruction of the property room along with the
purchase of software to keep the room organized. The aguatic center fund had a fund
balance decrease of $74,879 after a transfer in from the General Fund of $200,000.
The decrease was the result of a cool and rainy May, June and July that affected

attendance.

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the water and sewer service fund at the end of the year
amounted to $6,047,328 and those for the golf course operations amounted to
$902,003. The growth in net position for the water and sewer fund was $722,713 and
the net loss in the golf course fund was $77,235. Other factors concerning these two
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type

activities.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the general fund budget two
times. The budget amendments were to adjust the beginning fund balance fo actual
and to increase/decrease revenues and expenditures to more closely reflect the
anticipated actual revenues and expenditures for the year based on prior year results
and current year developments.

In particular, during the first amendment, capital line items were adjusted to include
additional carryover amounts from the 2014 budget for projects that were started but
not completed by June 30, 2014, In addition, there were also amounts added to several
expenditure line items for unanticipated repairs and maintenance items that that were
encountered for the Aquatic Center and the Government Center building. All beginning
fund balance amounts were adjusted to reflect the ending balances from the prior June
30 per the audit report.
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The second amendment basically adjusted some of the General Fund revenues to
more ciosely reflect anticipated revised projections and the addition of recently
refunded bond proceeds. In addition, the amendment adjusted expenditure line items
that were affected by the change in the personnel policies to pay out the amount of
vacation employees are allowed te carry over from one year to the next. In addition, the
City was awarded State funds for the Mall Road Phase Il project that will construct a
side road parallel to Mall Road for additional expansion. Funds were added to the
budget for the estimated revenue and expenditures for that project through June 30,
2015,

All of the general fund department's actual results came in under the final budgeted
amounts. All departments were under budget in the salaries, pension costs and health
insurance line items. Travel and training, community relations and supply reductions in
each department also contributed to lower than budgeted amounts. Motor fuel costs
also came in under budget in all of the departments due to the decrease in the cost of
a barrel of oil. The overall philosophy implemented in pravious years to only make
necessary purchases continues to contribute to lower expenditures throughout the City
departments.

The current year budget relied on the expectation of relatively flat property tax revenue
and slight increassas for payroll tax, occupational license fees and insurance premium
tax revenues. The property tax, insurance premium tax, occupation license fees and
the payroll tax all resulted in higher than anticipated amounts. Final actual revenue
categories exceeded final budgeted revenue amounts by $1,823, 362, This was due to
the growth in the revenue for the above mentioned categories as well as interets
income. Actual expenditures and transfers came in $1,984,467 under the budget
amounts due to the departments monitoring expenditures during the year and some
minor capital tasks not being completed by June 30. As a result of the excess
revenues, operational expenditure controls and capital improverments not being
completed, the City ended the year with a fund balance that was $3,807,829 greater
than what was budgeted.

DEBT AND CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

Long-term Debt

At year-end, the City had $21,590,000 in outstanding bonds compared to $23,055,000
last year. That is a decrease of $1,465,000 or 6.35 percent as shown in the following
table;

Governmental Business-type
Activitles Actlvities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Bonds pavable

Ohfigations

{hacked by

fee revenues) § - § - $ 2,020,000 % 2,230,000 § 2,020,000 § 2,230,000
Bonds payable

(hacked by city) 18,840,000 10,7585 000 730,000 1,070,000 19,670.000 20,825 000
Totals b 18,840000 $ 19765000 § 2,750,000 % 3300000 § 21,590,000 3 23085000
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Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note E on pages

43-47 of this report.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2015, the capital assets amounted to $234 million invested in capital
assets which include land, water and sewer systems, equipment, vehicles, buildings,
park facilities, roads and sidewalks. This represents a net increase of $7.8 million, or
3.46 percent, over last year due to the investment in street projects, storm water
projects, a new fire substation and water and sewer infrastructure improvements. The
increase can also be attributed to the replacement of vehicles and equipment during

the fiscal year.

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2015 2014 2015 2014

Not being depreciated;
Land $§ 10617492 § 10602492 4785542 3 4,785,542
Construction in prograss 2,391,326 459,386 52,763 -
Cther capital assets

being depreciated:
Improvements 18,318,619 17,862,448 581,199 581,159
Watler and sewer systam - - 44 902 182 43,355,488
Infrastiructure 108,486,352 106,427 579 - -
Buildings 23,338,855 23,338,855 4,200,497 4,200,497
Computer upgrade - - 56,396 56,396
Water meters - - 1,612,748 1,604,669
Machinery and equipment 4,624 861 4,198 234 1,957,866 1,807 465
Vehicies 7,042,563 £,144 039 1,036,775 966,518

Subtota 174,820,068 169,023,031 59,185,968 57,457,775

Accumulated

depreciation {92,512 321}

(87,698 181)

(28,939,541)

(27.324,168)

TOTALS i

82,307,747 §

81,326 850 §

30,246,427 &

30,133,607

This year's major additions included:

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer system improvements paid for with system revenues

Governmental-type activities:

The purchase of eguipment and vehicles with general fund revenues.
Improvements and street projects paid for with state and federal grant funds

and general fund revenues.
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Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note D on pages 42-
43 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The upcoming budget brings with it a continuing conservative approach for the revenue
amounts. The City of Florence has experienced some economic growth during the last
two years and seems to have had a slight recovery in the areas of payroll tax and
insurance premium taxes during the current fiscal year. The City has been successful
in dealing with budget realities in a positive manner to remain financially sound. The
budget for the 2016 fiscal year calls for core revenues remaining consistent with actual
resufts for fiscal year 2015. It is anticipated that property tax revenue will remain
constant with the level experienced during the prior fiscal year and that Council will not
adopt a property tax increase for the seventh year in a row, The City expects slight
growth in the remainder of the core revenue line items. The City has taken an
extremely conservative approach to our expenditures to be able to continually provide
the highest level of service for the residents. The City will once again reinforce the
philosophy about only purchasing that which is deemed to be a necessity. The City will
experience some growth with a large retail development that will include Menard's,
Costco, Dave and Buster's and Planet Fitness. The rising cost of all types of insurance,
including liability, workers compensation, and health and dental continues to be an
annual struggle. In addition, health care reform costs, state mandated retirement
contributions and rising utility costs are continuing to increase the annual growth of the
City's expenditures. The City is constantly looking for ways to operate the departments
more efficiently and effectively. In addition, some changes have been made to the
employee benefits to assist in curtailing personnel cost increases in the future.

Funds have been identified in the budget for the partial construction of infrastructure on
a 65 acre site designated for retail development. This site will host a Menard’s, Costco
and several other retail and dining establishments.

The City continues to implement its annual plan to upgrade the City's infrastructure.
Contractors were hired and are replacing certain sidewalks and curbs and are repaving
City streets. The City has continuing plans to upgrade the water and sewer sysiem as
well as the storm water infrastructure during the upcoming year.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed fo provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the Cily's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the Administrative Office or the
Department of Finance at 8100 Ewing Boulevard, Fiorence, Kentucky.

Richard J. Lunnemann Linda J. Chapman CPA
City Coordinator Finapge Directo
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Statement of Net Pos:tlon
June 30,2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

mvestments

Receivables:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Accrued interest
Accounts

Internal balances

Inventories

Prapaids

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets{net of accumulated depreciation)

L.and
Gaonstruction in progress
Systems
Improvements
Infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Water meters
Vehicles

Totai assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Contributions subsequent to the

measurement date
Total deferred cutflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued lighilities
Accruad interest payable
Linearned revenue
Customer deposiis
General obligation bonds payable - current
Revenue bonds payable - curreni
Ceompensated absences - current
Net pension liability
Compensated absences
General obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences between projected and actual
garnings on pension plan
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Unrestricted
Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activilies Actlvities Total

$ 60,180,061 § 59855718 3§ 57,138,679
16,176,174 - 16,176,174
79,480 - 79,480
508,563 - 508,563
82,012 - 82,012
5,393,198 1,547 268 6,840 464

17,572 {(17.572) -
163,083 261,738 424 821
471,557 60,740 532,297
106,177 538,782 641,859
10,617,492 4,785,542 15,403,034
2,391,326 52,763 2.444 089
. 20,968,219 20,888,219
10,021,926 181,150 10,213,076
42 270,013 - 42,270,013
14,017,088 3,314,344 17,331,432
1,335,130 - 1,335,130
- 763,348 753,349
1,654,772 161,080 1,815,832
165,485 532 39,591,101 205076 B33
341,028 264 587 825,615
3,014 155 241,282 3,255 437
3,355 183 525,868 3,881 052
1,132,543 329,949 1,462,492
371,592 157,257 528,849
88,266 25,448 111,714
44 848 - 44 848
- 270,020 270,020
1,045,000 380,000 1,395,000
- 210,000 210,006
700,000 60,000 760,000
20,226,668 1,888,664 22,125,332
45,380 10,323 55,703
17,795,000 380,000 18,175,000
- 1,810,000 1,810,000
41,447,297 5 501,661 48 948 958
1,630,544 168,550 1,800,094
63,487,747 27,406,428 80,964,175
52,295,127 5,949 331 69,244 458
$ 125702874 % 34,445 758§ 160,208,633
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

BALANCE SHEET '
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2015
Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash squivalents % 35,186,587 § 9,895084 § 45,182,571
Invesiments 16,176,174 - 16,176,174
Inventories 768,038 87,045 163,083
Receaivables:

Property taxes 79,460 - 79,480

Intergovernmenia 167,058 351,508 508,563

Accrued interest 82,012 - 82,012

Accounts 5,385,758 7.440 5,303,196
Prepaids 471.657 - 471,557
Due frem other funds - 44,698 54,8498
Restricted assetls:

Cash 106177 - 105,177
Total assets 5 57,718,849 § 10636672 & 58,256,521
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiiities:

Ascolnis payable $ 523,660 % 450,906 3 974 656

Accrued liabilitles 371,592 - 371,862

Due to other funds 77126 - T7128

Defarred ravenue 44,848 - 44,848

Total iabilifigs 1,017,226 450,996 1,468,222
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavallable revenue-property taxes 79,490 - 79,490
Unavailable revenug-employee raceivabie 10,439 - 10,438
Total deferred inflows of resources 89,929 - 89,829
Fund balances.

Nonspendable:

Inveniories 76,038 87,045 163,083
Prepaids 471,657 - 471,557

Restricted:

Street resurfacing - 1,135,761 1,135,761

Committed to:

Economie stabilization 5,600,000 - 5,000,000
Equipment repfacement 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Assigned to:
Capital projects - 7,151,805 7,151,805
Law enforcement - 341,323 341,323
Aguatic center - 1,369,542 1,368,642
Unassigned: 49,065,099 - 48,065,099
Total fund balances 56.612,694 10,085 678 66,698,370
Total liabilities and fund balances % 57,719,848 § 10,536,672 58,256,621
Totai governmental fund balances 66,698,370
Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the statement of nat
positlon are differeni becausa:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resaurces and, therefore, are nof reported in the funds,
net of accumulated depreciation $82,512,321. 82,307 747
Other fong-term assets are not avaitable to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 89,929
Aninternal service fund is used by management to ¢harge cerain cosis such as
health and dental insurance to cerlain funds. The assets and liabilities
of the interal service fund must be added to the statement of net asseis. 14,840,503
Contributions subseqguent to net pension lability measurement date 3,014,155
Net pension Lability actual investment earnings over projected {1.630,544;
Acecrued interest payable on long-term debi (86,268)
Caosts of issuance of debt, premiums and discounts are currenily expensed for govermmantal
funds and are carried as deferred charges in the siatement of net assets. 341,028
Long-term liabifites, including notes payable, are not due and payable
inn the current period and therefore are notf reported in the funds:
Accrued absences payable {746,380}
Net pension lability (2(3,225,668)
Bonds and leasaes payable (18,840,000}

Net position of governmentai activities &

The noles to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement,

125,762,874
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY .

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, E_XPENQITURES AND CHANGE N/ uwo BALANCES o

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmantal
Fines and forfaitures
Charges for services
Uses of property
Interest
Miscellanecus

Total revenueas

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration
Palice
Fire
Pubtic services
Debt sarvice:
Principat
Inferest
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures
Excess{deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES({USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Refunding bonds issued

Payment to refunded hond escrow agent

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
3 7958304 & - 7,958,304
20,267,029 2,394,608 22,661,727
1,101,016 2,493,885 3,584,901
252,909 - 252,906
3,742,741 737,708 4 480,447
- 95,545 95,545
380,528 25,008 406,434
110,815 2583 111,168
33,813,442 5,747 983 39,561,435
2,501,686 - 2,501,686
7.470,284 165,650 7,635,934
7,327,238 - 7,327,238
6,203,008 4,900,517 11,103,526
1,060,000 - 1,060,000
552,712 - 582,712
73,700 73,700
25,188,630 5,066,187 30,284 797
B,624 812 681,826 9,306,638
- 1,825,000 1,825,000
{1,825,000) - {1,925,000)
6,249,494 - 6,248 484
{6,170,804) - (6,170,894)
{1,646 400) 1,825,000 {21,400)
6,778,412 2,506,828 89,285,238
49,834,282 7,578,850 57,413,132
$ 56,612,694 % 10,085 676 66,698,370

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENBITURE3 AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNQS T@ THE

- STATEMEN T OF AC TIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 '

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 3

Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the staterment of activities, the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense:
Capital asset purchases capitalized
Depreciation expense

Change due to fixed asset refirements

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current fin-
ancial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is
the change in the amount through the vear,

Government funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts
and similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities,

Geovernment funds report the effect of net pension liability differences between
projected and actual earnings and changes in assumptions, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Government funds report the effect of net pension liability expenses based
on proportionate share of service cost and calculated pension costs from
measurement date to measuremant date.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds. This amount is the difference in the treatment of

iong-term debt.

Repayment of bond and fease principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term lia-
bilities in the statement of net assets,

Accrued interest on long-term debt is reported in the governmeant-wide
financial statements and not reported in the governmental funds. This
is the change in the amount of interest accrued through the vear.

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities, such as health and dental insurance fo individual
funds. The net revenues{expenses) of the internal service fund

is raported with governmental activities.

Some expenses reporied in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds such as compensated absences.

Change in net position of governmental activities 3

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

§,285,238

6,100,190
{5,103.867)

{288)

(317,275)

(166,301)

407,640

1,845,001

(6,195,000)

7,110,080

(24,298)

565,865

404,866
13,911,773
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CITY OF FLQRENCE, KENTUCKY ._ :. —

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FPROPRIETARY FUNDS SR
June 30, 2015 o C -

ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Accounts receivable
fnventories
Prepaids
Taotal current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation)
Construction in progress
Land
improvements
Systems and equipment
Water meters
Building
Vehicles
Total noncurrent assets
Total assels

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding
Confributions subsequent to the

measurement date
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current Habilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Accriued interest payable
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Bonds payable-current
Total current liabilifies
Moncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension lability
General obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCQURCES
Differences between projected and actual
earmings on pension plan
NET POSITION
Met investments in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position 3

The notes o the financial statements are an intagral part of this statement.

Governmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Health
Sewer Golf Total and
Service Course Current Year Dental
6,140,106 3 815,612 £,055718 § 14,898,390
1,545,189 2,079 1,547,268 -
168,006 106,732 261,738 -
51,788 B 952 80,740 -
7,893,089 932 375 8,825,464 14 998 380
536,782 - 536,782 -
52,763 - 52,783
- 4,785,542 4785542 -
“ 181,150 181,150 ~
20,737,968 250,251 20,988,219 -
753,349 - 753,348 -
3,293 3,311,051 3,314,344 “
161,060 - 161,060 -
22,245 215 8,537,984 30,783,208 -
30,138,304 470,364 35608673 14,988 390
202.848 81,738 284,587 -
241 282 - 241282 -
444 130 81,739 525,869 -
298,916 30,033 325,949 157,887
83,164 74,093 167 257 -
60,000 - 80,000 -
17,464 7,984 25,448 -
17.672 - 17,572 -
270,020 - 270,020 -
210,000 350,000 560,000 -
858,136 462 110 1,420,246 157 887
10,323 - 10,323 -
1,808,664 . 1,898 664 -

- 380,000 380,000 -
1,810,000 - 1,810,000 -
3,718,987 380,000 4,088,987 -
4677 123 842 110 5 519,233 157 887

169 580 - 168,550 -

19,688,433 7,807,995 27,496,428 -
6,047,328 902,003 6,949 331 14,840 503
25735761 § 8,700,998 34445780 & 14,840 503

29




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY .

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, E:'XPEN.SES AND CHANGES IN NET pOSi TION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services:

Water fees
Sewer charges
Peanaities
Tap in fees
Meter instaliations
Other service charges
Golf course revenues
Giher services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services
Loss on disposal of property
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
'NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Interest income
Interest expense
Total non-operating income
Transfers
NET INCOME(LOSS)
NET POSITION-BEGINNING OF YEAR
Prior period adjusiment-GASB 68

NET POSITION-END OF YEAR

Governmenfal
HBusiness-type Activities-Entarprise Funds Activities
Water and Health
Sewer Goif Totals and
Service Course Current Year Dental
58808642 & - % 5090842 3 -
2,225,265 - 2,225,265 -
117,610 - 117.810 -
64,769 - 64,768 -
44,825 - 44,825 -
37,199 - 37,188 -
- 1,185,379 1,158,379 -
. “ - 2,718,091
67,851 - 67,851 -
8,548,161 1,155,379 9,703,540 2,718,091
5,304,866 911,677 7,215,943 2,152 226
3,088 2,725 6,713 -
1,424,704 329,515 1,754,219 -
7,733,558 1,243,317 8,976,875 2,152,226
814,803 (87,938) 726,665 565,865
21,424 2,840 24,264 50,711
(113,314 (92,137) {205,451) -
(91,890) (89,2687) {181,187) 80,711
- 160,000 100,000 -
722,713 {77,235) 645,478 616,678
25,971,883 B, 787,233 35,758,816 14,223,927
{1,958 ,8635) - (1,858,635)
25,735,761 § 8700908 § 34445758 § 14,840,503

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.
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Moncash investing, capital and financing activities:

- increase in falk value of investmenis
Borrowing under capital lease
Contributions of capital assats from government

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FPROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2015
Governmental
Business-typa Activities-Enferprise Funds Activities
Watar and Health
Sewer Goif Totals and
Saervice Coursa Curtent Year Dental
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash raceived from customars 8,652,038 § $,153,800 3 9,805,838 % 2,718,081
Cash paid to suppliers (1,427.749) {548,678) (2,077.427) (2,158,182)
Cash paid to employess {4,957 ,453) (294,777} {8,252 230} -
Mei cash from(used by) operating activitles 2,266,825 208,345 2,476,181 559,909
Cash flows from noncapital financing activitios:
Transfer fron othar funds - 106,000 100,000 «
Net cash from{used by} noncapital financing activities - 100,000 100,000 -
Trash flows fram capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assefs (1,860,134) (36 060) (1,896,184) -
Amortization of issuance costs 25,898 49,043 74,938 -
Armerilzation of deferrad inflow ratated to pensian {42,387) . {42 387)
Interast pald on capital debt {118,591 {95,855) {212.,448) .
Principai paid on debt {210,000} {340,000) {550,000) ~
Net cash frem(used by} financing activities {2,203,216) {422,872) (2,628,088) -
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interast income 21,424 2,840 24 264 50,711
Net cash provided by investing activities 21,424 2,840 24,264 50,711
Net Increase(decraase) in cash 85,044 {110,687} (25.643) 610,620
Cash at baginning of year 6,561 844 926,208 7.5158.143 14387770
Cash at end of year 6,676,888 § 815612 % 7,492 500 $ 14,958,300
Reconcillation of operating income 19 net cash usad
by aperating activities:
Oparating Incemea(loss) 814,803 § (87.938) & 726,665 % 565,868
Adjustments o reconcile operating income
to net cash provided(used} by
operating activities:
l.088 on disposat of assets 3,988 2,724 6,712 -
Depraciation expense 1,424,704 329,515 1,754,219
Changes In assets and liabilities:
Dacrease(incresse) In accounts recejvable 103,877 {1,079} 102,798 -
Dacreaselincrease) in prepaid expenses {3,359} (2,708) (6,067 -
Dacraasa(increasa) in inventory 23 (31,612} {31,589) -
Increase(decraase) in aceounis payabis (78.1786) 162 {79,014} (5.478)
Ineressal(decrease) in accrusd fiabilities {2,333} 284 (2,052) -
Increase{decreass) in dus fo othar funds {(3,735) - (3.735) (480}
ncreaseldecrease) in customer deposits 8,244 8,244
Net cash used by oparating activities 2,266,838 § 200,345 § 2,478,181 § 559,908

The noles to the financiat statements ars an integral part of this statament.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Florence, Kentucky, have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies of the City are described below.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Florence is a municipality operating under a Mayor/Council form of government,
Legistative authority is vested in the six City Council members. As required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements
present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities are, in substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these units are
combined with data of the primary government. Each blended component unit of the City has a
June 30 year end. The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting
entity because of the significance of its operational and/or financial relationship with the City.

Included within the Reporting Entity:

City of Florence Municipal Properties Corporation

The City of Florence Municipal Properties Corporation was formed to act as an agent and to be
instrumentai in the financing of public improvements and projects of a capital nature for the City
and for the particutar purpose of acquiring real estate located within the City and constructing,
acquiring and equipping thereon capital improvements, facilities, buildings, structures and
related appurtenances. The Corporation finances these projects by the issuance of debt.
These debt issues are secured by (1) first mortgage liens on the projects, and (2) lease and
option agreements between the Corporation and the City, the construction agreements and
pledged receipts. The lease and option agreements require the City to pay rental from specified
revenues, on a yearly basis with the option to renew each year. If the City renews the lease
from year-fo-year, and pays the rentals for each year as stipulated, and when the Corporation
has fully paid and retired ali the bonds, the Corporation agrees it will convey the properties to
the City free and clear.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government., For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to

33




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
ravenues.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide
financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other
financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government
are reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund financial
staternents. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be availabie
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period, For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures refated to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, payroli fees, insurance license fees, occupational license fees and interest are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues in the current
fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered recorded as revenue when the funds have
been received,

The government reports the following funds of the financial reporting entity:
The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another

fund.

The municipal aid road/LGEA fund is used to account for funds received from the state for road
improvements and snow removal.

The infrastructure fund is used to account for a designated portion of payroil taxes, storm water
fees and grants to be used for the annual repairs to the City road infrastructure and storm water
fines,

The asset forfeiture fund accounts for all funds received from seized assets and purchases
made with those funds.

The aquatic center fund is used to account for the operations of the City's pool facility.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues
and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Ali revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The City
applies all GASB pronouncemenis and FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions
and Accounts Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, except those that
conflict with & GASB pronouncement.

The government reports the following preprietary funds:
The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of the government’s water and sewer sales
and services to residential and commercial users.

The World of Golf fund is responsible for the operations of the golf course facility.

The City's only internal service fund is the self-insurance fund for the City's heaith and dental
costs,

Assets, deferred culflows, liabilities and net assets or equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inciude amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with an initial maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City.

The City is authorized by state statute to invest in:

1. Obligations of the United States and of its agencies and instrumentalities.
2. Certificates of deposits.

3. Banker's acceptance,

4. Commercial paper.

5. Bonds of other state or local governments.

6. Mutual funds.

Investments

in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31, investments
heid at June 30, 2015 are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Property Tax Receivable
Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date.

The taxes are billed on approximately October 1 and are due and payable on December 31. On
January 1, the bill becomes delinguent and penalties and interest may be assessed by the City.
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A lien may be placed on the property on January 1. Total real property tax assessments were
$2,489,369,629 and tangible tax assessments were $358 457 842,

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions ocour between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due
from/to other funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as "interfund
receivables/payables”

inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFQ)
method. The cosis of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid lfems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2015 are
recorded as prepaid items. These prepaids are amortized over the contract period.

Capital Asselts

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary fund. These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets. Capital assets used by the proprietary fund are
reported in the business type activities column of the government-wide statement of nat assets.
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to capital assets agsociated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the City
as a whole, When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
funds and capitalized (recorded and accounted for). Capital assets are defined by the City as
assets with an initial, individual minimurm cost of $1,000 with a useful life in excess of two years.
Infrastructure such as streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for
general capital assets are historical costs, or where historical cost is not available, estimated
historical cost based on replacement cost.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method in the government-wide financial statements. Depreciation is charged as
an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation ig reported on the respective
balance sheet. The range of lives used for depreciation purposes for each capital asset class
are as follows:

Buildings 30 years
Building Improvements 10-20 years
Fublic Domain Infrastructure 25-40 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Office Equipment 3-10 years
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Compensalted Absences

it is the government’'s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits based upon a retirement basis. There is a liability for unpaid accumulated
sick leave since the government does have a policy to pay specified amounts when employees
retire from service with the government. Al vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in
the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations or retirements.

Long-Term Qbligations

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amoriized over the life of the bonds.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as revenue and payment of principle and interest
reported as expenditures. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund
statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report as a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government only has one item that
qualifies for reporting in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on
refunding resuits from the difference in the carrying value if refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt.

in addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government only has one type of item,
which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmentai funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source-property
taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amounts become avaiable.
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Fund Balahce Policies

Net assets is the differance between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital asseis,
net of related debt are capital assets, less accumulated depraciation and any outstanding debt
refated to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Fund balance of the governmaeantal funds is reported in various categories based on the nature
of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

In the fund financial statements, government funds report components of fund balance for
amounis that are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balances arise when resources cannot be spent because of their form and
because resources must be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balances arise when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balances are those that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making
authority, which, for the City is the Council. The Council can by adoption of an ordinance prior to
the end of the year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the
ordinance remains in ptace untit a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balances are those that are intended to be used by the government for specific
purposes, but do not meet the criteria 1o be classified as committed, Council has authorized the
finance director to assign fund balance though the financial policies and procedures established.
Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. in other words an additional
action of does not hormally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely,
additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

Unassigned fund balance is the residuai classification for the general fund. The classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance). In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund
balance in the government fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be
used for the same purpese, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses
Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for the proprietary fund are those that result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. it also includes all revenue and
expenses not related to capital and related financing, non-capital financing or investing
aclivities.

Expenditures/Expenses

in the government-wide financial statements, expensas are classified by function for both
governmental and business-type acfivities.

In the fund financial statements, governmentai funds are classified as follows:

Governmental funds — by character Current-further classified by function
Debt service
Capital outiay

Proprietary fund - by cperating and non-operating

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report expenditures of financial rescurces.
Proprietary funds report expenses related to use of economic resources.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related o pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the County Employees Retirement System (CERS) and additions to/deductions
from CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
coniributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided/used are accounted for as revenuss, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

{se of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements, These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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Date of Management’s Review

Subseguent events were evaluated through September 10, 2015, which is the date the financial
statements were available for review.

NOTE B-STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

A. In accordance with City ordinance, prior to June 30, the Mayor submits to the Council, a
proposed operating budget on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budge! inciudes
proposed expenditures and the mearns of financing them for the upcoming year.

B. By July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

C. The City Coordinator is required by Kentucky Revised Statutes to present a quarterly report
to the Council explaining any variance from the approved budget.

D. Appropriations continue in effect until a new budget is adopted.
E. The Council may authorize suppiemental appropriations during the year.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for all funds except the capital projects fund, which is not budgeted. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. Any revisions to the budget that
would alter total revenues of any fund and expenditures of any department must be approved by
the Council; however, with proper approval by the City Coordinator, budgetary transfers within
departiments can be made. The Council adopted two supplementary appropriation ordinances.
All appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end,

The City Councit has adopted guidelines for maintaining a minimum general fund balance in the
amount of 17% of budgeted operating expenditures and recurring transfers. In sither case,
unusual items such as one-time expenditures shall be excluded from the calculation. In addition,
Council has adopted a resolution and established a stabilization fund balance. This fund
balance may only be used for operations to pay for expenditures when the unreserved fund
balance falls below the minimum fund balance of 17% of expenditures and recurring transfers.
Each December 31%, Mayor and Council shall determine if any funds are to be transferred to
increase the stabilization fund balance.
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NOTE C-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2015, the City had the following investments:

Fair Weighted Average
Value Maturity(Years)
Cash $ 67,136,679 -
Certificates of deposit 6,145,507 0.33
Government obiigations 10,030,667 5.00
Total fair value $ 83,312.853
Portfolio weighted average maturity 4.60

Interest rate risk. in accordance with the City's investment policy, interest rate risk is limited by
investing in public funds with the highest rate of return with the maximum security of principal.
fnvestments are undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure preservation of the capital in its
portfolic.

Credit risk. State law limits the types of authorized investment instruments to obligations of the
United States, its agencies, and instrumentalities. in addition, certificates of deposit or bonds of
a bank or the Commonwealth of Kentucky, securities issued by a state or local government or
shares of mutual funds are acceptable investments. The City's investment policy limits its
authorized investment instruments in these investments to one of the top three highest rated
categories by a nationally rated agency. As of June 30, 2015, the City's investment in
government was rated Aaa by Moody's and AAAm by Standard & Poor's.

Concentration of credit risk. The City may not invest, at any one time, funds in any one of the
above listed categories exceeding twenty percent of the total amount of funds invested on

behalf of the City.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the City's deposits will not be returned. The City maintains deposits with financial institutions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As allowed by law, the
depository bank should pledge securities along with FDIC insurance at least egual {o the
amount on deposit at all times. As of June 30, 2015, the City's deposits are entirely insured
and/or collateralized with securities held by the financial institutions on the City’s behalf and the
FDIC insurance.

Custodial credit risk —~ invesiments. For an investment, this is the risk, that in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the vaiue of its investments that
are in the possession of an outside party, The policy permits investment in U.S. Treasury
obligations and cbligations backed by the full faith and credit of the United States and in the
securities issued by certain associations and corporations established by the government of the
United States. The City had custodial credit risk at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $10,030 667
for its government obligations. The related securities totaling this amount are uninsured.
unregistered and held by various Trust departments.
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NOTE D-CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital assets aclivity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows;

Balance Balance
June 30, Adjustments/ Retiremenis/ June 30,
2014 Additions Transfers Deletions 2015
Governmental activities;
Not being depreciated:
Land £ 10602492 § 15,000 % - 3 - B 10617492
Construction in progress 459,386 2,391,327 (444 266) (15,121} 2,391,326
Subtotal 11,061,878 2,406,327 (444 266) {15,121) 13,008,818
Other capital assets:
Improvements 17,852,448 466,173 . 18,318,619
Infrastructure 106,427 579 1,614,507 444 266 - 108,486,352
Buildings 23,338,855 . - 23,338,855
Magchinery and equipment 4.198,234 503,445 - {76,818) 4,824 861
Vehicles 8,144 039 1,108,737 {40,244) (170,968) 7,042 563
Subtotal 157,861,153 3,693,862 404,022 (247787) 161,811,250
Accumulated depreciation:
Improvements 7,323,242 473,451 - - 8,296,693
infrastructure 63,952,479 2,263,860 - - 66,216,339
Buildings 8,539,181 782,618 - . 8,321,767
Machinery and equipment 2,888,433 477,812 18 (76,532) 3,289,731
Vehicles 4,992 876 606,128 {40,244) (170,969) 5,387,791
Subtotal _ 87,695,181 5,103,867 (40,226) (247,501) 92,512,321
Net other assets 70,284,672 {1,410,005) 444 248 (286) £9,298 629
Net capital assets $ 81326850 § 986,322 3 (18) & 15407y § 82,307,747
*Depreciation was charged to functions as foliows:
Governmental activities:
Administration 5 2,027619
Potice 2,801,427
Fire 270,378
Public services 304,445
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 5103867
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The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets in the proprietary funds:

Proprietary acivities:
Not being depreciated:

Land %

Construction in progress
Subtotal

Other capital assets:

Water and sewer system

Improvements

Buildings

Vehicles

Computer upgrade

Water meters

Machinery and equipment
Subtots

Accumulated depreciation:

Water and sewsr system
Improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Computer upgrade
Watar meters
Machinery and equipment
Subtotal
Net other assels
Net assets §$

*Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Proprietary activities:
Water and sewer
Golf Course

Total proprietary activities depreciation expense

Balance Balance
June 30, Adjustment/ June 30,
2014 Additions Transfers Delstions 2015
4,785542 % - 5 - 5 - b 4,785,542

- 52,783 - - 52,783
4,785,542 52 763 - - 4,838 305
43,355,488 1,586,227 {39,533) - 44,802,182
581,199 - - “ 551,198
4,200,497 - - - 4,200,487
966,519 90,001 40,244 {59,889) 1,036,775
56,356 - - - 56,398
1,604 669 8,078 - - 1,612,748
1,807 465 137,837 38,577 (125,813 1,857,866
52,672,233 1,821,944 39,288 (185,802} 54 347 663
23,196,397 1,158,653 16,843 - 24,375,793
321,560 68,489 - - 380,048
781,223 134,831 - - 886,154
818,202 77,257 40,244 (59,989) 875,714
56,388 - - - 56,388
746,191 113,208 - - 859,399
1,434,199 200,781 {19,843} (119,101} 1,496,036
27,324,168 1,754 219 40,244 {179,090) 28,939 541
25,348,065 87,725 (958) (8,712) 25,408,122
30,1336807 3 120488 3 (956) 3 (6,712) & 30,246,427

5 1,424,704

329,515

5 1,754 219

NOTE E-LONG-TERM DEBT

Leases FPayable

Operating Lease

The City leases copier and printing equipment under a noncancelable operating lease. Total
costs for this lease was $29,912 for the year ended June 30, 2015, The future minimum lease

payments for this lease are as follows:

43



CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

Year Ended
June 30

2018
2017
2018
2019
2020

Totals

Bonds Payable

The City issues bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed
assets to pay debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Aquatic center and skate
park projects(Series 2010)

Land-Series 2011 refunding
Land-Series 2012 refunding

General obligation refunding
bonds(Series 2015)

Public project refunding
bonds{Series 2008B)

Proprietary Fund Debt
Watar and Sewer System

Golf Course

5

$

2.00-3.875%

2.00-3.375%

2.00-3.80%

1.00-2.50%

3.20-4.00%

1.45-2.50%

4.375%

44

22,434

b

Amount

22,434

5,780,000
2,980,000

2,350,000

6,100,000

1,630,000

18,840,000

2,020,000

730,000

2,750,000
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The following is a schedule of future debt service requirements to maturity at June 3C, 2015 for
bonds general activities and for business activities.

The City's general long-term debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2015, are as
follows:

Fiscal Year 2010 GO Bonds 2011 GO Bonds
June 30, Frincipal Interest Principal Interest

2016 F 250,000 S8 179,169 3% 130,000 3 78,056
2017 255,000 174,119 130,000 75,456
2018 260,000 168,968 130,000 72,8586
2019 265,000 163,388 135,000 70,006
2020 275,000 156,625 135,000 67,508
2021-2025 1,505,000 653,094 735,000 292,097
2026-2030 1,755,000 398,281 525,000 189,053
2031-2034 1,215,000 50,573 760,000 52,022
Total Debt Service § 5,780,000 § 1,943,117 2,980,000 8 897,052

Fiscal Year 20088 GO Bonds 2015 GO Bonds
June 3@, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 3 100,000 % 50,855 465000 3 113,400
2017 105,000 56,655 470,000 108,750
2018 105,000 53,295 475,000 104,050
2019 110,000 49,035 485,000 96,925
2020 115,000 46,085 480,000 89,650
2021-2025 540,000 165,935 2,585,000 296,787
2026-2028 455,000 37,000 1,120,000 40,738
Total Debt Service 3 1,630,000 8 468,760 5,100,000 $ 850,300

Fiscal Year 2012 GO Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest

2016 8 100,000 $ 72,045
2017 100,000 70,045
2018 85,000 68,085
2019 100,000 66,145
2020 106,000 63,833
2021-2025 £60,000 274,650
2028-2030 660,000 175,470
2031-2034 630,000 48,830
Total Debt Service $§ 2,350,000 % 839,113
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The City's proprietary fund debt service requirements to maturity at Jume 30, 2015 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year 2012 Water and Sewer System 2008A Golf Course
June 30, Principal Interest Frincipal Interest
20186 $ 210,000 % 33,405 S 350,000 % 31,938
2017 215000 30,324 380,000 16,624
2018 220,000 27170 - -
2019 220,000 23,880 - -
2020 225,000 20,764 - -
2021-2024 930,000 45,828 - -
Total Debt Service $ 2,020,000 § 181,450 % 730,000 % 48,562
Conduit Debt

The City has issued General Obligation Bonds to provide assistance to the Northern Kentucky
Area Development District for the construction of a facility deemed to be in the public interest,
The bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds ownership
transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, State, nor any political
subdivision thereof, is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as a liability in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30,
2015 the bonds outstanding were $2,295,000.

Changes in Governmental-Type Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in
the general long-term debt:

Amounts
June 30, Juna 30, Due Within
2014 Additions Retirements 2015 One Year
Compensated
absences 3 1,150,246 § 407,068 § (811,834) 3 745,380 % 700,600
Bonds payable.
Series 2003A 80,000 - {90,000) -
Series 2005A 6,445,000 “ (8,445,000} - -
Series 20088 1,725,000 - (95,000} 1,630,000 100,000
Series 2010 6,030,000 - {250,000) 5,780,000 250,000
Series 2011 3,015,000 - {35,000) 2,880,000 130,000
Series 2012 2,450,000 - {100,000) 2,350,000 160,000
Series 2015 - 8. 195,000 (95,000) 8,100,000 465 000
Totals $_ 20905246 § 5602088 $ (7,921934) $ 19585380 & 1.745000
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Compensated absences are liquidated by the general fund.

The government-wide statement of net assets includes $1,745,000 of long-term liabilities due
within one year for governmental activities and $620,000 for business-type activities.

Changes in Business-Type Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as
follows:

Batance Balance Amounts

June 30, Juna 30, Due Within

2014 Additions Retired 2015 QOne Year
Bonds payable-water/sewer  § 180,000 3 - % {180,000) % - 3 -
Bonds payable-water/sewer 2,050,000 - {30,000) 2,020,000 210,000
Compensaied absences 102,494 78,145 {108,3186) 70,323 60,000
Bonds payable-golf course 1,070,000 - {340,000) 730,000 350,000

$ 3,402,494 § 76,145 § (668,3168) § 2,820,323 § 820,000

NOTE F-CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims including amounts
aiready coliected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounis, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immateriai.

NOTE G-EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

County Employees Retirement System (CERS)

City employees who work at ieast 100 hours per month participate in the County Employees
Retirement System (CERS). Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645, the
Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS) administers the CERS.

The plan issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained by request from
Kentucky Retirement Systems, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601,

General information about the Pension Flan

Plan Description - CERS is a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
covers substantially all regular full-time members employed in non-hazardous and hazardous
positions of each county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies
electing to participate in CERS. The plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits
to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under
certain circumstances. Prior to July 1, 2009, cost-of-living (COLA) adjustments were provided
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annually equal to the percentage increase in the annual average of the consumer price index for
ail urban consumers for the most recent calendar year, not to exceed 5%.

Effective July 1, 20089, and on July 1 of each year thereafter, the COLA is limited to 1.5%
provided the recipient has been receiving a benefit for at least 12 months prior to the effective
date of the COLA. If the recipient has been receiving a benefit for less than 12 months prior to
the effective date of the COLA, the increase shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis for each
month the recipient has not been receiving benefits in the 12 months preceding the effective
date of the COLA. The Kentucky General Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce the
cost-of-living adjustments if, in its judgment, the welfare of the Commonwealth so demands. On
July 1, 2014, the COLA was not granted.

Non-hazardous Benefits ~ For members who began contributing to CERS prior to September 1,
2008, final compensation represents the average fiscal year of garnings with the highest
monthly average used when calculating your retirement benefit. Final compensation is based on
the 5-high creditable compensation years with a minimum of 48 months and a minimum of five
fiscal years. Final compensation is determined by dividing the totai salary earned during the 5-
high years by the number of months worked, then muitiplying by twelve. Non-hazardous
members, age 65 or older, or with 27 or more years of service are gligibte to retire and receive
unreduced benefits. Any non-hazardous member, age 55, with a minimum of five years of
service may retire with a reduction in benefits.

For non-hazardous members who began contributing to CERS on or after September 1, 2008,
any member age 57 or older, may ratire with no reduction in benefits if the member's age and
years of service equal 87. In addition, a member, age 65, with at least 80 months of service may
retire with no reduction in benefits. A member, age 60 or older, with at least 120 months of
service credit may retire at any time with a reduction of benefits.

Hazardous Benefits — For members who began contributing to CERS prior to September 1,
2008, final compensation represents the average fiscal year of earnings with the highest
monthly average used when calculating your retirement benefit. Final compensation is based on
the 3-high creditable compensation years with a minimum of 24 months and a minimum of three
fiscal years. Final compensation is determined by dividing the total salary earned during the 3-
high years by the number of months worked, then multiplying by twelve. Hazardous members,
age 55 or older, or with 20 or more years of service are sligible to retire and receive unreduced
benefits. Any non-hazardous member, age 55, with a minimum of five years of service may
retire with a reduction in benefits,

For hazardous members who began contributing to CERS on or after September 1, 2008, any
member age 60 or older with 60 months or service or a member with 25 years of service, may
retire with no reduction in benefits In addition, a member, age 60, with at least 60 months of
service may retire with no reduction in benefits, A member, age 60 or older, with at least 120
months of service credit may retire at any time with a reduction of benefits.

Non-hazardous Contributions - For the year ended June 30, 2015, all plan members who began
participating before September 1, 2008, were required to contribute 5% of their annual
creditable compensation. Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past
service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation
last preceding the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates as of the
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first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a
subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy
requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board, For the year
ended June 30, 2015, participating employers contributed 17.67% of each employee's
creditable compensation. The actuarially determined rate set by the Board for the year ended
June 30, 2015 was 17.67% of creditable compensation. Administrative costs of Kentucky
Retirement System are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings.

In accordance with House Bilt 1, signed by the Governor on June 27, 2008, plan members who
began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008, were required to contribute a total of 6% of
their annual creditable compensation. Five percent of the contribution was deposited to the
member's account while 1% was deposited to an account created for the payment of health
insurance benefits under 28 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky
Adminisirative regulation 102 KAR 1:.420E). Interest is paid each June 30 on members’
accounts at a rate of 2.5%. If a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund,
the member is entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest; however, the 1% contribution
to the 401{(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. For plan members who hegan
participating prior to September 1, 2008, their confributions remain at 5% of their annual
creditable compensation.

In accordance with Senate Bill 2 signed by the Governor on April 4, 2013, plan members who
bagan participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to participate to the Cash
Balance Pian. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid pian because it has characteristics
of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members in the plan contribute a
set percentage of their salary each month o their own account. Non-hazardous members
contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation and 1% to the heaith insurance fund
which is not credited to the member's account and is not refundable, The employer contribution
rate is set annually by the Board based on an actuarial valuation. The employer contributes a
set percentage of the member’s salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received,
an employer pay credit is deposiied {o the member’s account. A member's account is credited
with a 4% employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer
contribution.

Contributions to the non-hazardous pension plan from the City were $709,653 for the year
ended June 30, 2015,

Hazardous Contributions - For the year ended June 30, 2015, all plan members who began
participating before September 1, 2008, were required to contribute 8% of their annual
creditable compensation. The state was required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.
Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past service
contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation iast
preceding the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates as of the first
day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent
actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements
determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board. For the year ended June
30, 2015, participating employers contributed 34.31% of each employee's creditable
compensation. The actuarially determined rate set by the Board for the year ended June 30,
2015 was 34.31% of creditable compensation. Administrative costs of KRS are financed through
employer contributions and investment earnings.

49




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2015

In accordance with House Bill 1, signed by the Governor on June 27, 2008, plan members who
began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008, were required to contribute a total of 8% of
their annual creditable compensation. Eight percent of the contribution was deposited to the
member's account while 1% was deposited to an account created for the payment of heaith
insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky
Administrative regulation 102 KAR 1:420E). Interest is paid each June 30 on members’
accounts at a rate of 2.5%. If a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund,
the member is entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest; however, the 1% contribution
to the 401(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. For plan members who began
participating prior to September 1, 2008, their contributions remain at 8% of their annual
creditable compensation,

In accordance with Senate Bill 2 sighed by the Governor on April 4, 2013, plan members who
began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to participate to the Cash
Balance Plan. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid pian because it has characteristics
of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members in the plan contribute a
set percentage of their salary each month to their own account. Hazardous members contribute
8% of their annual creditable compensation and 1% to the health insurance fund which is not
credited to the member's account and is not refundable. The employer contribution rate is set
annually by the Board based on an actuarial valuation. The employer contributes a set
percentage of the member's salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received, an
employer pay credit is deposited to the member's account. A member's account is credited with
a 7.5% employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer
coniribution.

Contributions to the hazardous pension plan from the City were $2,545,784 for the year ended
June 30, 2015,

Insurance Benefits

Pian Description — The Kentucky Retirement Insurance Fund (Fund) was established to provide
hospital and medical insurance for members receiving benefits from KERS, CERS and SPRS.
The Fund pays a prescribed contribution for the whoie or partial payment of required premiums
to purchase hospital and medical insurance. The Fund pays the same proportion of hospital and
medical insurance premiums for the spouse and dependents of retired hazardous members
kifled in the line of duty.

Insurance Benefits - For members participating prior to July 1, 2003, the amount of contribution
paid for hospital and medical insurance is based on the years of service and respective
percentages of the maximum contribution as follows:

Years of Service % Paid by Insurance Fund
20 or More 100%
15-19 75%
10-14 50%
4-9 25%
Less than 4 0%

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 Kentucky General Assembly), medical insurance benefits
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are calcutated differently for members who began participating on, or after, July 1. 2003. Once
members reach a minimum vesting period of ten years, non-hazardous employees whose
participation began on, or after, July 1, 2003 earn $10 per month for insurance benefits at
retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount.
Hazardous employees whose participation began on, or after, July 1, 2003 earn $15 per month
for insurance benefits at retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a
maximum dollar amount. Upon death of a hazardous employee, the employee's spouse
receives $10 per month for insurance benefits for each year of the deceased employee’s earned
hazardous service. This dollar amount is subject to adjustment annually based on the retiree
cost of living adjustment (COLA), which is updated annually due to changes in the Consumer
Price Index for all urban consumers. This benefit is not protected under the inviolable contract
provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statute 16.652, 61.692 and 78.852. The Kentucky General
Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce this benefit if, in its judgment, the welfare of

the Commonwealth so demands.

Insurance Contributions - Irt prior years, the employer’s required medical insurance contribution
rate was being increased annually by a percentage that would result in advance-funding the
medical liability on an actuariaily determined basis using the entry age normal cost method
within a 20-year period measured from 1987, In November 1992, the Board of Trustees adopted
a fixed percentage contribution rate and suspended future increases under the current medical
premium funding policy until the next experience study could be performed. In May 1906, the
Board of Trustees adopted a policy to increase the insurance contribution rate by the amount
needed to achieve a target rate for the full entry age normal funding within 20 years.

KRS commenced self-funding of healthcare benefits for its Medicare eligible retirees on January
1, 2008. A self-funded plan is one in which KRS assumes the financial risk for providing
healthcare benefits to its retirees. The self-funded plan pays for claims out-of-pocket as they are
presented instead of paying a pre-determined premium to an insurance carrier for a fully-insured
plan. KRS funds the risk of its self-insured program directly from its insurance assets.

On August 6, 2012, the board voted to cease seif-funding of healthcare benefits for most KRS
Medicare eiigible retirees. The Board elecied to contract with Humana Insurance Company to
provide neaithcare benefits to KRS' retirees through a fully-insured Medicare Advantage Plan.
The Humana Medicare Advantage Plan became effective January 1, 2013,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Rescurces Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of 35,584,305 for its proportionate share of the net
pension lability for non-hazardous and $16,541,007 for hazardous, The City’'s net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension Hability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuariali valuation as of that date. The City's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected coniributions of ail participating
entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, the City’s proportion was 0,17 percent for
non-hazardous and1.38 percent for hazardous.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $621,253 for non-
hazardous and $2,163,297 for hazardous. At June 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows
or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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GENERAL WATER AND SEWER

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows  Deferred Qutflows  peferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources

Difference beiween expecied and

actual experience $ - % - % - S
Change in assumptions - - - -
Net difference hetween projected and

actual sarnings on pension

plan investments - 1,630,544 - 169,550
Changes in propertion and difference

between City contributions and

proportionate share

of contributions - - -
City contributions subsequentto the

measurement date 3,014,155 - 241,282

Total i 3014155 § 1630544 § 241,282 ¢ 168,550

The $3,014,155 and $241,282 reported as deferred cutflows of resources relating to pensions
resulting from the City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018, Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended General Water and
June 30 Hazardous Nonhazardous Sewer
2016 S (325,355} 5 (82,374) & {42,295}
2017 {325,355) (82,374) (42,295}
2018 (325,355) {82,374) (42,295)
2019 (325,355) {82,374} {42,295)
2020 - - -
Totals {1,301,420) (329,496) {169, 180)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
rmeasurement:

inflation 3.5 percent
Salary increases 4.5 percent, average, inciuding inflation
investment rate of return 7.75 percent, net of paension plan investment

expense, including inflation
The rates of mortality for the period after the service retirament are according to the 1983 Group
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Annuity Mortality Table for all retired member and beneficiaries as of June 30, 2006 and the
1994 Group Annuity mortality Table for all other members. The Group Annuity Mortality Table
set forward § years is used for the period after disability retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2005-June 30, 2008.

The long-term expected return on system assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience
studies prepared every five years. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering
fiscal years 2005 through 2008, is outlined in a report dated August 25, 2009. Several factors
are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption including tong-term
historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution anaiysis
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return and net of
investment expense) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class.
These ranges were combined to produce long-term expected rate of return by weighing the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding
expected inflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consuitant are
intended for use over a 10-year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of
return for funding pension plans which cover a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to
be a long-term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the
asset allocation, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future
years. The target allocation and hest estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Nominal Return
Domestic equity 30% 8.45%
International equity 22% 8.85%
Emerging market equity 5% 10.50%
Private equity 7% 11,25%
Real estate 5% 7.00%
Core US fixed income 10% 5.25%
High yield US fixed income 5% 7.25%
Non US fixed income 5% 5.50%
Commodities 5% 7.75%
TIPS 5% 5.00%
Cash 1% 3.25%
Total 100%

Discount Rate - The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate. Projected
future benefit payments for all current plan members were projected though 2018,

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers

would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the
remaining 29 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial
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determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial
value of assets over the first four years of the projection period.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The discount rate used
to measure the total pension lability for the system was 7.75% for both, nonhazardous and
hazardous. The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
percent, as well as what the systems' net position liability would be i it were calculated using s
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.75%) or one percentage point higher
(8.75%) than the current rate for non-hazardous and (6.75%) or one percentage point higher
(8.75%) than the current rate for hazardous ($ thousands):

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

CERS 6.75% 7.75% 8.75%
Non-hazardous $ 4,269,383 § 3,244376 $2,338,760
Hazardous 3 1,672,178 $ 1,201,824 § 887,365

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CERS financial report,

NOTE H-DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees of the City of Florence may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments). Employees may also participate in a
Section 401(k) adopted under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

The deferred compensation plan is available to all employess of the City. Under the plan,
employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred
portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount is not available for
withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable financial

emergency.

The deferred compensation plans are administered by ICMA and Kentucky Public Employees’
Deferred Compensation Plan.

NOTE I-CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits, Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's Attorney, the resolution of these matters will
not have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.

NOTE J-INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the interfund account balances is as foilows:
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Due fromfto other Funds
Receivable Funds(s) Payable Fund(s) Amount
General Water and sewer % 17,572

Infrastructure General (94,688)
Total $ (77,126}

Due from and due to other funds represent short-term accounts receivable and payable. The
balances in these accounts are typically the result of time differences between the date that
goods and services were provided and when payment occurred.

Transfers infout Amount
CGeneral Municipal aid/LGEA $ 125,000
General Infrastructure 1,500,000
General Aguatic center 200,000
Genersl Golf Course 100,000
Total 3 1,825 000

During the year, transfers are used to move general fund resources to provide annual subsidy to
the transit fund. For the year ended June 30, 20185, the City made the following annual transfers:

1} A transfer of $125,000 was made from the general fund to the special revenue fund for
annual funding amounts for snow removal,

2) A transfer of $1,500,000 was made from the general fund to the infrastructure fund to
provide funding for the initial infrastructure for a retail development on Mall Road..

3) A transfer of $200,000 was made from the general fund to the aquatic center for the
annual subsidy to support the recreation operations.

4) A transfer of $100,000 was made from the general fund to the golf course fund for the
annual subsidy to support the recreation operations,

NOTE K-RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The
City has obtained insurance coverage through a commercial insurance company. In addition,
the City has effectively managed risk through various employee education and prevention
programs through the efforts and cooperation of its department heads. All risk for general
liability management activities are accounted for in the General Fund. Expenditures and claims
are recognized when probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated.

The City has established a Health and Dental Self-Insurance Fund. Employees participate in
this program and certain other medical insurance programs offered by the City. Under this
program, the first $60,000 of a participant's medical claim are pavable by the health and dental
self-insurance fund. The City purchases insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by
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the fund. The general fund participates in the program and makes payments to the health and
dental fund based on estimates of the amount needed to pay current year claims. The claims
Hability of $157,887 reported in the fund at June 30, 2015, is based upon the requirements of
GASH Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the claims liability amount were:

Balance at Ciaims and

Beginning of Changes Claims

Fiscal Year in Estimates Payments June 30,
2012-2013 $ 180972 3 2,666,124 3 2,786,983 $ 30,113
2013-2014 3 30,113 % 1,950 897 3 1,817,847 $ 163,363
2014-2015 $ 163,383 $ 2,146 750 % 2,152 226 3 157,887

The City Attormey estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the City as of
June 30, 2015, will not materially affect the financial condition of the City. Thersfore, the
General Fund contains no provision for estimated claims, No claim has exceeded insurance
coverage amounrts in the past three fiscal years,

NOTE L - COMMITMENTS
At June 30, 2015, the City had the following commitments with respect to the following projects:

Projects Commitments

Mall Road Development $2,750,000
NOTE M-PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The city was required to adopt GASE Statement 68, “Accounting and Financial reporting for
Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27" during fiscal year 2015. As a result of

that adoption, a prior period adjustment was made to record the beginning net pension liability
amolnts.
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CITY QF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL- GENERAL F"UND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 .~

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounis {Negative)
Budgetary fund balance, July 1 3 45813145 & 40 834 282 - 49,834,282 % -
Resources {inflows),
Taxes:
Property 7.100,000 7.100.000 7,248,021 148,021
Franchise 530,000 530,000 525,169 (4,831}
Bank deposit 200,000 200,000 185,114 (14,888)
Licenses and permits:
Payroll icense fees 12,800,000 12,800,G00 13,435,831 535,831
Gross receipts license fees 2,100,000 2,100,000 2,250,820 150,520
Insurance 4,000,000 4 600,000 4,467 479 467 479
Other 95,000 95,000 113,199 18,159
intergovernmental 1,045,000 1,056,574 1,101,018 44 442
Fines and forfeitures 186,000 186,000 252,909 86,809
Charges for services - 3,664,000 3,664,000 3,742,741 78,741
Interest 175,000 175,000 380,528 205,528
Miscetlaneous 83,000 83,000 110,815 27,915
CGther financing sources:
Refundning bends issued - 6,250,000 6,249 484 (508)
Ampunts avaitable for appropriation 77,791,145 88,073,856 89 897,218 1,823,362
Charges lo appropriations {outfiows):
Administration:
Personnst 1,021,550 1,021,550 1,000,488 21,082
Contractual 930,000 930,000 700,860 229,340
Operating/Maintenance 441,000 441,000 419 577 21,423
Capital outlay 427 875 435,875 380,961 54 914
Total administration 2,820,425 2,828,425 2,501,686 328,738
Police;
Perscnnel 6,955,000 7,043,100 6,821,120 221,880
Contractual 30,000 30,000 25,420 4,580
Dperating/Maintenance 482,100 482,100 368,863 113,237
Capitai outlay 247 992 259,566 254,881 4 685
Total police 7,715,092 7,814,766 7,470,284 344 482
Fire:
Personnel 6,096,650 6,306,850 6,092,890 213,780
Contraciual 161,000 161,000 82,204 78,756
Operating/Mainienance 465,000 465,000 447 825 17,375
Capital outiay 742 600 769,600 704,520 65,080
Total fire 7,485,250 7.702,25C 7,327,239 375011
(Continued)
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(Continued)

Public servicas:

Personnet $

Contractual
Crperating/Maintenance
Capital outlay

Total public services

Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Refunding bond issuance costs
Total debt service

Other financing uses:
Special revenue
Enterprise fund
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Total other financing uses

Total charges 1o appropriations

Budgetary fund balance, June 30 $

3,259,550 % 3,259.550 § 3064869 § 194,681
426,000 426,000 396,942 29,058
1,140,500 1,140,500 1,053,874 86,626
1,671,000 2,283,500 1,687.324 S06,176
6,487,050 7,119,550 6,203,009 918,541
1.060,000 1,060,000 1,060,600 -
568,000 568,000 552,712 16,288
- 73,700 73,700 -
1,629,000 1,702,700 1,686,412 16,288
1,825,000 1,825,000 1,825,000 .
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
- 5,176,300 5,170,894 5,406
1,925,000 8,101,300 8,095,884 5,406
28,051,817 35,268,991 33,284,524 1,884,487
49738,328 § 52,804,865 § 56612604 § 3,807 829
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Non-hazardous:
Contractuaily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage
of covered-empioyee payroil

Hazardous:
Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
City’s covered payroll

Coniributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

5

2014 2015

745,822 § 709,653
745,822 708,653

$ .
3,948,767 3 4,474,550
18.89% 17.67%
2,488,652 2,545,784
2,488,652 2,645,784

TS w
6,971,014 § 7,419,047
35.70% 34.31%
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SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHAIF;?E OF’ NET PENSION LIABILITY-»-~»=

NON-HAZARDOUS AND HAZARDOUS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

June 30,
2014
Nan-hazardous:

City's proportion of the net

pension liability 0.17%
City's proporticnate share of

the net pension liabifity
City's covered-employee payroll
City's propeosrtionate share of the

net pension liability as a percentage

of iys covered-employee payroll 138.06%
Plan fiduciary net positicn as a

percentage of the total pension

5,584,305
4,016,148

&5 &

lighility 68.8%
Hazardous:
City's proportion of the net
pension liability 1.38%

City's proportionate share of
the net pension hability
City's covered-employee payroll
City's proposriionata share of the
net pension fiability as a percentage
of iys covered-employee payroll 222.93%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension
liability 83.4%

16,541,007
7,419,048

&~ o
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2015

Valuation dates. Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of July 1% preceeding the
fiscal year end in which the contributions are reported.

Changes in benefif terms. There were no benefit changes reported in the June 30, 2014 actuarial report.

Changes in assumptions. There were no changes in assumptions and methods reported in the June 30,
2014 actuarial report.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2015 '

CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Special Revenue Funds Total
Nonmajor
Municipai Asgset Aguatic Governmental
Ald infrastructurs Farfeiture Center Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1083344 § 7158023 % 342,425 % 1411192 % 0,095 984
intergovernmental receivable 56,790 294,715 - - 351,808
Due from other funds - 94,698 - - 94,6898
Accounts receivable 7,440 - - - 7.440
inventory 87,045 - - - 87,045
Total assets $ 1234619 3 7548436 G 342425 % 1,411,192 § 10,536,672
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable & 11,813 § 396531 % 1,102 % 41560 % 450,998
Total iiabilities 11,813 386 531 1,102 41 550 450,896
Fund balances:
Nonspendabie:
Inventaries 87.045 - - - B7.045
Rerstricted:
Resurfacing 1,435,761 - - - 1,135,761
Assigned to;
Special revenus fund - 7,151,805 341,323 1,368 642 8,862 870
Total fund balances 1,222 8086 7,151,805 341,323 1,360 642 10,085,676
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1234610 § 7548436 3 342425 % 1411192 & 10,536,672
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CITY OF FLLORENCE, KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPE’NDI TURES

- AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES .
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Licenses and permils $

intergovernmentai
Charges for services

Uses of property
Interest
Miscellanecus

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

Police

Public Services

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over(under) expendituras

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Totat other financing sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending 3

Special Revenue Funds Total

Nonmaior
Municipal Asset Aguatic Govemnmential

Aid Infrastructure Forfeiture Centar Funds
- 8 2,384,698 § - % - 0% 2,294,688
713,758 1,780,130 - - 2,493,885
- 475,000 - 262,708 737,708
- - 95,545 - 95,545
3,308 17,373 1,198 3,837 25,806
- - - 253 253
717,183 4,687 201 96,743 266,898 5 747,993
- - 165,650 - 165,650
586 615 3772127 - 541,775 4,900,517
586,615 3772127 165,650 541,775 5,066,187
130,538 835,074 (68,907) {274,879) 881,826
125,000 1,500,000 - 200,000 1,825,000
125,000 1,500,000 - 200,60C 1,825,000
255,538 2,385,074 {88,907) (74.879) 2,506,828
967,268 4,758,831 410,230 1,444,521 7,578,850
1,222,808 % 7,151,908 § 341,323 % 1,360,642 § 10,085,676
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Budgetary fund balances, July 1 $ H97.5668 § 967,268 % 867,268 -
Resources {inflows):
Intergovernmentat 719,000 719,000 713.758 (5,245)
‘ Interest 2,200 2,200 3,398 1,188
Other financing sources:
Transfer in 125,000 125,000 125,000 ~
Amaounts available for appropriation 1,443,756 1,813,468 1,808,421 {4,047}
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Current:
Public services 590,200 580,200 586,615 3,585
Total 580,200 590,200 586,615 3,585
Budgetary fund balances, June 30 $ 853,666 § 1,223,268 % 1,222,808 {462)
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—IN FUND: BALANC&*BUDGE T AND AC TUAL-INFRAS TRUCTURE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30,2015

Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources (inflows):
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenua
Charges for services
Interest
Transfer in
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Current:
Public services
Total
HBudgetary fund baltances, June 30

$

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Finai Ameounts {Negative)
2997896 § 4,756,831 $ 4756831 § -
2,206,000 2,200,060 2,394,698 164,698
2,000,000 2,750,000 1,780,130 (869,870)
475,000 475,000 478,000 -
5,000 5,000 17,373 12,373
1,500,000 1,500,006 1,500,000 -
9,177,898 11,686,831 10,924,032 {762,798)
5,135,000 5,885,000 3,772,127 2,312,873
5,135,000 5,885,000 3,772,127 2,112,873
4042896 § 5801831 $ 7151805 § 1,350,074
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Budgetary fund batances, July 1
Resources (inflows):
Uses of property
Interest
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows),
Current:
Police
Total
Budgetary fund balances, June 30

$

$

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Finad Amounts {Negative)
315770 5 315770 410,230 § 94,460
25,000 25,000 95,545 70,545
a00 500 1,198 298
341,670 341,870 508,873 165,303
201,335 201,335 165,650 35,685
201,335 201,335 165,650 35,685
140,335 § 140,335 341,323 % 200 988
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-A QUA T C C‘EN TER FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources (inflows):
Memberships
Daily Admissions
Programs
Concessions
Locker Renial
interest
Miscalfaneous
Other financing sources:
Transfer in
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public services
Management contract
Utilities
Repairs and mainienance
Supplies
Bank service charges
Miscellanecus
Capital
Total
Budgetary fund balances, June 30

5

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts (Negative)
1,468,783 § 1,468,783 3% 1,444 521 § (24,262)
50,000 50,000 44,277 (6,723)
225,000 225,000 189,188 (35,812)
19,000 19,060 23.387 4,397
15,000 15,600 5122 (9,878)
200 800 722 {78)
4,800 4,800 3,837 {863)
500 560 253 (247)
200,000 200,000 200,000 -
1,983,883 1,983,883 1,911,417 (72,468)
380,000 380,000 358,060 21,000
167,700 167,700 92,849 64,851
45,000 45,000 42,347 2,653
1,000 1,600 1,861 (961)
8,500 8,500 5,063 1,437
3,750 3,750 4,581 (831)
35,000 35,000 35,974 (974)
528,950 628,950 541,775 a7 175
1,354,933 § 1364933 % 1,360,642 § 14,709
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

{amounts expressed in thousands)

{continued)
Bank
Property  Franchise Deposit
Fiscal Year Tax Tax Tax Totai
2006 5 5817 % 614 § 141 $ 6,572
2007 $,312 515 170 6,997
2008 7,074 562 181 7.817
2009 7.169 543 184 7,826
2010 7.357 579 211 8,147
2011 7,223 555 207 7,985
2012 #,981 821 193 7,685
2013 7.003 521 183 7.707
2014 7.113 562 209 7.884
2015 7,248 525 185 7,958
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Principal Property Taxpayers
June 30, 2015

Taxpayer

General Growth 5
New Plan Property Holding
Turfway Park, LLC

Cabot Turfway Ridge 14 LLC
IBM Credit Corp

Trettises Kentucky
Bluegrass RHP

Wai-Mart Real Estate

GPT Properties Trust

ZF Steering

Carporex Key Partnership
Meier Stores

Cayton Development

Beam Associates

SRC Facilities
Shelbyville inc.
TOTAL

2015 2006
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxabie Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Valuation Rank Value Vaiuation Rank Value
89,100,000 1 3.57% 3 86,900,000 1 4.11%
37,650,135 2 1.35% 32,881,800 p 1.55%
21,800,000 3 0.79% 30,000,000 3 1.42%
21,500,600 4 0.77%
20,302,320 5 0.73%
19,410,000 6 0.70% 15,802,500 5 0.75%
18,000,000 7 0.65%
18,000,000 8 0.85%
18,000,000 9 0.65%
17,033,279 10 0.61%
15,912,000 4 0.75%
15,800,000 6 0.75%
13,680,400 7 0.65%
12,499,000 8 0.5%%
12,152,000 9 0.57%
12,000,000 10 0.57%
10.47% 3 247627700 11.71%

5 200,805,734

79




08

%86 TBL'ZTOVE % - $ %66 {86p'gzL) $ 2822012 0§ GeL'WZTZ § sioz
%001 8Z6's9L'. ¢ col'gs 8 %66 (gre'gz) $ €84°0LLL ¢ ©PTO8L'Z ¢ wioz
%001 991'890'/ % geooz $ %66 (rig'LzL) IR of At (s 2 ¢ 080'V60°. ¢  ¢l0T
%001 ¥52'GA0 2§ 195'061 $ %56 (Fe2'sEL) $ 48LSLO0Y ¢ 90L0BLZ §  zioZ
%001 65222, $ siz'se S %66 (s81'521) $ BlEEBL'. ¢ sOSVYEL ¢ 1402
%001 £GCG6E'. ¢ £T/G8l $ %66 {og1°6z1) ¢ 0es'e0Z’L & gzviors ¢ Loz
%001 oLi'ger's  $ SBZvL $ %68 {c62°211) $ GLB08¢'. ¢ 6/8'€S¥. % 8002
%001 SI0'LpZ L $ D0BY'GLL $ %68 (gze'211) ¢ s8p'szL'/ § €o09vZ’s. ¢ 800z
%004 S/L'€5E'9 & Ser'nlL 4 %86 (z68'201) $§ 1897819 ¢ sBYL'pSEs ¢ 7002
%RE 5/2'28¥'¢ & - ¢ %28 - $ 8/2'7S¥'S § 085'€8S's ¢ ooz
[Sjaiivriiisig) JUNOWY SIE3A pelasiion SILUNQISICE SUOHOBJIOD ?m:w 1EBA BOSI4
J0 sBejuaniag juanbasgng u saxey Xel jusung Xej | oy
e O mco_uomch [EIC ) wco.mumzoo RUND i)
usdiad

SIED ) [BOSId US] 1587
SUCHB]{0 pur s8IAsT Xe ] Aladoay

AMONLINSM 'FONIHOTH 40 ALID




ig

spuog ssipadoid ognd ()
'Bjep uoieindod pue sutcout |euosied o} g sbed uo sonsielg Suuouosy pue aydesbows jo snpayog syl 9eg (1)

‘SluaLualels eroueuy Syl 0 S2J0U BY) W puno; 8q ued Jasp Buipueisino s Ao ey Buipseba sieteq ojoN

5.8 $ 00C'o¥sIz 8 - 3 Qoo'ees § poQozez % - § - $ - $ oDo'osL'8y & 1oz
[4-73 $ 000'ss0'cz % - $ 000’040 $ 000082z & - $ - 3 - $ QOO'GEL8E 3 ¥L0T
167 $ 000005%Z ¢ - 5 000'e68"L $ 000oErT ¢ - g - g - § go0'ssioe 8 eing
145 S 000'DZi'9E & - 3 0005021 $ oop'ovge  § - $ - 3 - $ opo'slilz 3 Zioe
08 § 000'Gog'sz % - 3 000°010'2 $ 000S¥8T & - $ - g - § ooo'ose'ze $ Lioe
886 $ ooo'svo'sz % - g 000°00E'2 ¢ 0o0'soR's ¢ - % - % - ¢ ooc'ove'ze ¢ 0102
590"t $ 9£6'898'67 ¢ PEG'VE & % 000'085'z ¢ ood'ogs’z  § - 5 - 3 - %t ono'ses’ez % 6002
Gpi'y ¢ eZy'ssz’ie ¢ L8L'LY $ ¢ 000'ssg'e ¢ ood'oti'e § - % 0E9'8iE g - $ oooono'sz $ g00¢
0gz'l $ e9g9'igg'ze ¢ £a0'ce $ ¢ 00D'GODE ¢ 0B0'GEZE & - $ 865%2L $ 000'58L'Z $ 00009z % 2002
yOg’L $ TrZ'isi've  § 0iZcm $ ¢ ooo'og'e ¢ ocoo'seE’e ¢ - 8 06868 $ 000'0LF'Z ¢ 000'08Z'YZ ¢ o002
uoueindod JUBRILIBACS S8R spuog spung spLiog S3SEY} spuog spUOg B8 1B0Sig
Jad weg Amuig rende s Ooy/sauadoig I19IBAA BMag euden ssipsdoig suonebigo

€10} Aang ShgNg j[elausn

saanoy edAl -ssausng SSIIALY S0A] BIISURLBAOS

SIea ) 23S Us ) 1587
adA] Ag 1geq Bulpueising go soney
AMONLNZDM ‘BONIHOTL 40 ALID




c8

'z8 ebed uc sonsnEIg oiwouesy pue siydeiBowsq o 2ANPBYOS S vl punol 8q ued glep uopemdod (g}
‘2iep anjen Apsdord 10} ¢z abed uo Ausdoid sigexe ] 10 BNjeA DOSSBSSY JO BINPBYIS Byl 32 (1)

SIUBLUSIELS [BIOBUBLY B} O] SSJ0U ay) Ut puno} eq ued J9ep Bubueisino s Apo sy BupieBel siejeg BION

Zi9

¢ %040 00002561 $& - ¢ 00002861 $ GL0Z
049 $ %4470 00052802 $ - ¢ 000's28'07 $ vi0Z
€14 $ %ER0 000°0/L'22 & - $ 0O0'DLLZE ¢ €102
59/ $ %830 0o0'08y'ce & - $ 000'08F'EE ¢ zLoe
€18 ¢ %260 000'08E 2 $ - ¢ 000'09EbZ $ L10g
688 $ %P6 0 Qoo'ove'sz ¢ - $ ooo'ove'se 3 0L0Z
858 $ %860 000's/6'92 & - $ 000'c/g'oZ 4 6002
ai5 $ %98°0 000'000'6Z $& - $ 000'000'sT $ 8007
388 $ %Gi'L 000'0ve'ee $ - $ 000'0P9'ce $ 2002
128 $ %G1 000'082' v $ - $ 000'092'%2 ¢ 9007
{z) euden Auadoid 1230 | pUn.g soinleg spuoyg B3 [B0SI
izd o (})enep 1980 Ul djgejieAy suonebiiqo
Sqexe By ﬂcnOE{ ”mmmam {Biguscy

10 abejusoiay

siea ) jeosiy ue) 1se
Buipueising j9eQ pepuog jesousy jo soey

AMONINIY FONIHOTL 40 ALID




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Jurne 30, 2015

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmentat Unit Outstanding Applicable(1) Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes: County 3 36,766,699 26.40% % 9,706,488
Subitotal, overiapping dabt 8,706,488
City of Florence direct debt 19,620,000
29,226,488

Total direct and overlapping B

Source: Kentucky Local Debt Report

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City.
This schedule estimates the portion of the cutstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of the City of Florence. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's
ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken
into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying

the dabt, of each overlapping government,

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values, Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the county’s taxable assessed vaiue that is within the
government's boundaries and dividing it by the county's total taxable assessed value.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Fiscal Personal Median Median Unemployment
Year Population (1) Income (2) inceme (2) Age (2) Rate (3)
2006 26,188 % 1,034,033,180 $ 39,485 33.1 4.0%
2007 26716 8 1,083,762920 % 39,452 33.1 4.5%
2008 27,281 § 1,122,658,588 § 41,148 341 5.4%
2008 27,748 % 1.183,712,680 3 42,664 34.2 8.7%
2010 28381 8 1,374,860,783 3 48,443 34.3 9.7%
201 29,851 % 1,474,907,044 $ 49,244 357 9.1%
2012 30,687 $ 1,622,228,835 § 48,606 35.2 7 1%
2013 31,088 % 1,660,026,928 3 50,181 36.5 8.9%
2014 31,088 § N/A $ N/A N/A 5.6%
2015 31,888 % N/A 3 N/A NiA 5.5%

{1} Census Bureau and Kantucky State Data Center
{(2) Tri-County Economic Development Corporation
(3) Bureau of Labor Statistics Data and Kentucky State Data Center
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

LS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

DEA -« Law Enforcement Assistance

LS. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through State of Kentucky
National Hwy Traffic Safety Adm.

CERPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emeargency/
Response (SAFER)

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Federal

CFDA

Number

16.804
16.804
16.001

20.600
20.600

97.083

Grantor's
Number

2014-DJ-BX-0838
2011-D4-BX-2361

PT-14-15
M5-15-11

EMW.2013-FH-00577

Pass-Through

Federal
Expenditures

11,570
2,856

17,271

31,697

2,945
24,825
27,770

473,805
473,805

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
Note A - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity

of the Board and is presented on the moedified accruzl basis of accounting. The Information in this schadule

is presented in accordance with the requitements of OBM Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local
Govermnments, and Non-Profit Organizafions. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financiaf statements.
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Rankxn, Rankan & ComMpany B Lookout Corporate Center B Tel. 859/331-5000

Certiffed Public Accountants 1717 Dixie Highway, Suite 500
Ft. Wright, Kentucky 41011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AU-
DIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOV-
ERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Diane E. Whalen, Mavor
To the Members of City Council
City of Florence, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Compirolier General of the United States, the financial statements of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities each major fund, and the aggregrate
remaining fund information of the City of Florence, Kentucky as of and for the years ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes io the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Florence’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September

10, 2015,
Internal Confrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Flor-
ence’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Florence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the City of Florence’s internai controt.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to pre-
vent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficien-
cy, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the enlity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detect-
ed and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiences, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding par-
agraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro! that
might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Florence's financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our fests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govern-

ment Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit per-
formed in accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

RANKIN, RANKIN & COMPANY

Ft. Wright, Kentucky
September 10, 2015
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L Certified Public Accountants 1717 Dixie Highway, Sulte 600
Ft. Wright, Kentucky 41011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Diane E, Whalen, Mayor
Members of City Council
City of Florence, Kentucky

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Florence’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circuiar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015. The City's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned cosis.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsibie for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and granis applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’'s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issue by the Comptrolier General of
the United States; and OMB Circular A~133, Audifs of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a ftest basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those
requirements and perferming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We betieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the City’'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015,

Report on Internat Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing ouwr audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal

control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal controt over compliance exists when the design or aoperation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, ar detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal controf over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control ocver
compliance, yet important enough {0 merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

RANKIN, RANKIN & COMPANY

L anbi, Rouhils CT f
Ft. Wright, Kentucky GAK/

September 10, 2015
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1.

2.

8.

9.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the
financial statements of the City as reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and OGther Matters.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City were disclosed
during the audit.

No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal
awards programs are reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and internat Control Over Compliance.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City expresses
an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510 (a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reported in this schedule,

The programs tested as major programs included:

Program CFDA No.

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) 97.083

The threshold for distinguisging Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

NONE

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

NONE
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Prior Year — Compliance and other matters (Financial Information)
There were no findings in the prior year.

Prior Year — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
There were no findings or questioned costs in the prior year.
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